

Council of the Cherokee Nation

Council House 17763 S. Muskogee Ave. Tahlequah, OK 74464

Meeting Minutes RULES COMMITTEE

Thursday, February 7, 2008

10:00 AM

Legislative Conference Room

Rescheduled

CALL TO ORDER

Chair Frailey called the meeting to order at 10:30 a.m.

INVOCATION

Councilor Cowan Watts gave the invocation.

ROLL CALL

Present 15 - Bill John Baker; S. Joe Crittenden; David Thornton Sr.; Don Garvin; Meredith Frailey; Cara Cowan Watts; Buel Anglen; Jack D. Baker; Tina

Glory Jordan; Jodie Fishinghawk; Harley Buzzard; Curtis Snell; Chris

Soap; Bradley Cobb and Chuck Hoskin

Absent 1 - Julia Coates

Late Arrival 1 - Janelle Fullbright

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Councilor Cobb moved for the approval of December 20, 2007 regular session minutes. Councilor Cowan Watts seconded the motion. Motion carried. Councilor Bill John Baker made a motion to approve the December 17, 2007 sub committee minutes. Councilor Anglen seconded the motion. Motion carried.

Councilor Glory Jordan made a motion to amend the agenda to move item 10 in new business to the forefront due to the number of visitors present regarding this issue. Councilor Cowan Watts seconded the motion. Councilor Jack Baker suggested an amendment to move item 13 before 10 due to the presenter being from the Oklahoma City area. Councilor Glory Jordan denied the request for 13 to come before 10. Chair Frailey restated the motion as amending the agenda to move item 10 then 13 of new business to before reports. Motion carried.

A LEGISLATIVE ACT AMENDING TITLE 68 CHAPTER 4 OF THE CHEROKEE NATION CODE ANNOTATED - TOBACCO TAX; ADDING DEFINITIONS, AND ALLOWING FOR REPEAL OF SECTIONS OF THE TOBACCO TAX COMPACT

Page 1

ACT

Secretary of State Melanie Knight provided a handout of a brief outline of the amendments being presented. The Wholesaler Act of 2008 does 2 things; provides authority for us to create a wholesaler and create an option for purchasing the border shops. She stated the Act does not become effective unless we are without a compact. This authorizes the Nation to become a wholesaler. The purpose would be if we are without a compact there would be a need for a means to get merchandise to the Cherokee Nation to sell. The Nation would then resale the merchandise with a 65% tax rate. This is a means of supply but also it will be the Nation that is at risk if there is a dispute. The tax rate is set at 65% which without a compact would be less than the state rate of 75%. The licensing requirements would change where the wholesaler would license with the Nation instead of the State. The buy out or purchase provisions of this Act would provide an option for the retailer to sell their business to the Cherokee Nation. She stated if there isn't a compact or a new compact is negotiated it is almost 100% likely that it would be a flat rate. Border rates would no longer exist. She announced there is also a buy out of leases available. This is an option to the retailer it is not mandatory. Chair Frailey requested a motion passage to allow discussion.

Councilor Glory Jordan made a motion for the passage of this Act. Councilor Fishinghawk seconded the motion.

Councilor Bill John Baker stated this is a formula for disaster for every smoke shop in the Cherokee Nation. If you want to come up with a plan where we offer the wholesalers an advantage guaranteed to sell \$3.00 cheaper than Wal-Mart can buy. Our smoke shops have been under attack. Wal-Mart, Quick Trip, and Murphy's have all made deals with the cigarette companies. The tax is really mute. It doesn't matter what the tax is if the cigarette companies are willing to sell cheaper than the tax to the big companies. He suggested the Cherokee Nation take a hit and sell to the smoke shops for \$3.00 cheaper than what Wal-Mart is selling. This would put us on a level playing field and that is what it has always been about. He stated all we will be doing with this is putting the smoke shops out of business. He stated he would be opposed.

Councilor Buzzard requested Councilor Glory Jordan withdraw her motion to allow him to make a motion to approve for discussion to continue. Councilor Glory withdrew her motion to pass and seconded Councilor Buzzards motion for approval.

Councilor Cowan Watts requested to yield time to Mr. Joe Lane. Chair Frailey requested the Council have discussion first then time will be allowed for the guests. Councilor Hoskin Jr. stated in respect to the buy out the years the administration is looking at are some what dated. Ms. Knight there is two options. One is to use years before the most current compact because we didn't have the retail to retail sales factored in or use current year sales and back out the retail to retail sales. Councilor Fishinghawk inquired as to what other tribes are doing. Ms. Knight responded saying different tribes are in different situations. The Choctaws operate all of their own shops. The Creeks are operating in a similar arrangement but unsure of what their tax rate. Councilor Fishinghawk requested an explanation of wholesaler. Ms. Knight stated in general term under the present law to be a wholesaler licensed by the Nation you must also be a wholesaler licensed by the State. This Act would eliminate the need for the State license. Mr. Gregg Simmons stated the change in the code wouldn't affect the operation. Councilor Fishinghawk requested the opinion of Mr. Campbell a wholesaler for 40 years regarding the Cherokee Nation becoming a wholesaler. Mr. Campbell a wholesaler has to be licensed by the State. The Creeks are a wholesaler that is not licensed by the State however some of their cigarettes do not have stamps. He stated he couldn't sell without a 7.75 tax on each carton. He stated the 65% Ms. Knight is offering is a better situation however the retailer down the street has an even better situation. The major manufacturers will not sell to you at a cheaper rate and will not put you on direct. He stated he is having a hard time

staying after 40 years. Without Phillip Morris on the native side you would only be able to get low end cigarettes. The Creeks are buying out of Canada which is unstamped. Ms. Knight announced they do not feel it is required in Indian country to have a State license therefore they would not seek one. She stated they have made contact with other wholesalers that are not licensed in the state of Oklahoma and does not have an agreement with the state of Oklahoma. The first option would be to purchase from them and bring directly into Indian country. Councilor Thornton stated we have fussed about this for years and haven't included the people working for us. Some of these people were asked to go into the business. He suggested rather than buying out the border shops to buy them all out and then the Cherokee Nation could take over. He stated a committee should be formed with members of this committee and smoke shop owners to work this out if it has to be changed. He stated Quick Trip is the biggest backer of the First Nation which have a sole purpose to drive Native American businesses out of business. He voiced concern for us not communicating with the smoke shops. The smoke shops employee Cherokees and pay the Cherokee Nation on a monthly basis. Councilor Thornton stated he would be opposed to this legislation. Councilor Buzzard requested Ms. Knight give a scenario if we do not compact with the State. Ms. Knight stated there are a couple of things that factor in. The arbitration is ongoing and has been fully briefed and a decision is expected from the arbitrators. We don't know what the decision will be the State has been accused of breaching the contract and we have accused them of breaching the contract in regard to the retail to retail sales. The decision is far over due. Once a decision is made the State can say this compact is not workable and direct us to negotiate a new compact at this point we would be without a compact. The best thing to do would be to negotiate a compact before the arbitrators rule to keep from having a break in the compact. If we are without a compact the State's rates of 75% go into effect. This would be the worst case scenario for the retail shops. Councilor Soap asked what the expected time frame for negotiation of a compact. Ms. Knight stated that is difficult to answer. Ms. Diane Hammons stated she is unsure of the time. Ms. Hammons stated it depends upon what the arbitrators' issue. The negotiation may take months but it could take even longer. Councilor Bill John Baker stated a lot of these smoke shop owners were approached about getting into the business and there was an advantage to tobacco within the Nation. Now Quick Trip, Wal-Mart and others have been working to take the advantage away. He questioned if the administration had considered placing 8 or 10 gaming machines in the smoke shops to cover the lost advantage. Ms. Knight stated they haven't considered that option. She stated this is taxation and what Councilor Baker is referring to is buying power. They have discussed options of having several small retailers form a coalition to have more buying power. Another option is to draft a proposed bill for the state legislature to do pricing similar to the alcohol industry. Councilor Glory Jordan stated her concern is for the 100's of families that appear to be employed in this industry and the lease holders and their families. She agreed with Councilor Thornton in regard to the need to form a committee to include the input of the smoke shops. She stated she would be opposed to the legislation today. She stated if the State of Oklahoma lost a business of 400 to 500 employees they would be outraged and we need to be also. Councilor Fullbright stated she is against what Quick Trip is trying to do but during the campaign season the smoke shop people were hostile toward her. Councilor Crittenden stated this isn't politics this is just doing what is right. He suggested just moving along with what we have until the arbitration is settled. He stated if there is a problem the smoke shop owners will let us know. Mr. Joe Lane stated he knows the administration is trying to do the right thing but this will put the smoke shops out of business. When they started compacting in 1992 by going to the state and negotiating a 25% rate and was told it was forever. However when the compact ran out 3 years ago because of wanting gaming dollars the smoke shops were hurt. He requested voting down the legislation or forming a committee and allowing them to have input. Former Chief of the Delaware, Joe Brooks, stated he was against the

compact in 1992. He agreed if a tax increase is passed all smoke shops will be shut down. He stated the fight needs to begin now or when the gaming compact runs out they will have it all. Stand up and fight for your tribal sovereignty. Mr. Tony Grantham general manager from Sun Flower Supply announced he has been in the industry for 1991. Sun Flower Supply has been built primarily with the partnership of the Native American people of Oklahoma. He stated Phillip Morris began qualified sales this year which means they have to know where 60% of your product goes. If you pass this number you are allowed to stay on direct. This qualified sales is nation wide. He stated the most pressing issue is not the State of Oklahoma for the smoke shops it is Phillip Morris and RJ Reynolds. March 28th is the date the 60% numbers must be met. If they are unable to satisfy them then they will be unable to buy therefore unable to provide for the smoke shops. Councilor Soap inquired what the effects of the smoke shops if the compact isn't reached. Mr. Lane provided an example of what would happen to him as a smoke shop owner. He stated he would have to pay \$10.30, the State rebates on a quarterly basis, and he would be approximately \$4.00 higher than his competition. He stated he is unable to tie up millions of dollars waiting on rebates. He stated the smoke shops along the Texas border have an advantage of gaming, fuel, and tobacco. He stated the only advantage here is the tax. Councilor Cowan Watts called for the question.

Chair Frailey stated the motion on the floor is to approve the legislation regarding the tobacco tax. The motion FAILED by the following vote:

Yea: 0

Nay: 16 - Bill John Baker; S. Joe Crittenden; David Thornton Sr.; Don Garvin; Meredith Frailey; Cara Cowan Watts; Buel Anglen; Jack D. Baker; Tina Glory Jordan; Jodie Fishinghawk; Janelle Fullbright; Harley Buzzard; Curtis Snell; Chris Soap; Bradley Cobb and Chuck Hoskin

Presentation of Recommendations of the Elected Officials Compensation

Judge Jennifer Barger Johnson provided a handout of their recommendation. Chair Frailey stated Ms. Johnson was very active in the last compensation committee recommendation and gave appreciation for her return. Ms. Johnson announced they met for the first time on January 16th where they unanimously appointed the fifth member Joe Haley. The committee met on the 21st of January to deliberate recommendations of salary changes if any for the Cherokee Nation elected officials. Upon examining the data received from the Cherokee Nation regarding salaries of other tribes they found it notable that under the current salary structure of the Cherokee Nation this Council is approximately 6.5% below comparable 2007 averages for the other tribes. The deputy chief is 28.4% below comparable averages and the principal chief is 5.34% below comparable averages. As a result with consideration of cost of living and the increase in obligations the committee has recommended a 5% base salary increase per year for the remaining 2007 term. She stated the committee feels this would help bring the tribe back in line with what the other tribes are doing. She stated with the 5% increase in 2008 and 2009 the Cherokee Nation would still be below comparable averages. Mr. Hembree commended the compensation committee on their efforts in this matter. He reminded the Council that this legislative Act was passed as an effort to depoliticize elected official raises. He strongly suggested the Council give the recommendation consideration. Councilor Cobb stated he was very impressed with the work of the compensation committee. Councilor Thornton apologized for the compensation committee having to do this a second time. He stated last term the Council stated they were not going to accept a salary increase and he is still not. If it would have been left the way it was at first he was in favor. Councilor Crittenden inquired if the committee considered moving the deputy up beyond 5% to make up some of the difference. Ms. Johnson stated they did consider it but wanted to maintain a standard

13.

scale to not be as confusing. Councilor Crittenden voiced concern for the unfairness of the deputy's pay.

Councilor Garvin stated this is a good plan however the original was to come up with a recommendation for 2011. He stated he would prefer to keep it that way and not vote himself a raise now. He made a motion to table the recommendation to the next meeting. Councilor Cowan Watts seconded the motion. Motion carried. Chair Frailey acknowledged compensation committee member John A. Ketcher.

Councilor Glory Jordan announced the Cherokee Nation Youth Council is hosting a homemade chili sale in the Financial Resources break room from 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. for \$3.00. She suggested the Council and everyone in attendance go over and show support because they will be the ones sitting in our seats one day.

Councilor Cowan Watts made a motion to accept all reports in writing and then approve the nominations in Toto. Chair Frailey stated one of the Councilors does have a question regarding a report. Mr. Hembree suggested having the question submitted in writing with a 24 hour turn around for an answer. Councilor Fishinghawk agreed to submit her question in writing. Councilor Anglen seconded the motion to accept the reports in writing and approve all the nominations in Toto. Motion carried.

REPORTS:

Marshal Service:

Sharon Wright

Justice Department:

Diane Hammons

Election Commission:

Patsy Eads Morton

Tax Commission:

Sharon Swepston

Self-Governance:

Vicki Hanvey

Gaming Commission:

Jamie Hummingbird

Codification

Todd Hembree

GEG Investigation Report

Diane Hammons

OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

1. COUNCIL'S ELECTION COMMISSION NOMINEES

Chair Frailey read the nominees as follows: Martha Calico, Roger L. Johnson, Brant Shallenburger, and Raymond Vann. Councilor Cowan Watts made a motion to approve Roger Johnson and Martha Calico as our election commission nominees. Councilor Garvin seconded the motion. Councilor Glory Jordan requested confirmation that all nominees are tribal members. Councilor Cowan Watts stated they would like representation from the North not just around here. Mr. Johnson stated he is both proud and humbled by the nomination. He retired 2 years ago from CNE where he worked on the construction group for 4 years. Councilor Bill John Baker stated he would like to nominate Raymond Vann as well. Councilor Cowan Watts called point of order that there is a motion on the floor that needs to be voted up or down and she will not accept a friendly amendment. Councilor Bill John Baker inquired if this was the only choice take it or leave it. Councilor Cowan Watts stated it is a motion and you can nominate whom ever you want if this fails. Mr. Hembree stated division can be called on any motion. Councilor Bill John Baker called for division for each to be voted on separately. Councilor Cowan Watts called for both questions. Chair Frailey called for all in favor of Martha Calico. Motion carried unanimously. Chair Frailey called for all in favor of Roger Johnson. Roll call is as follows:

Buel Anglen	Yea	Bill John Baker	Nay
Jack Baker Ye	a	Harley Buzzard Yea	
Bradley Cobb	Yea	Joe Crittenden	Nay
Jodie Fishinghawk	Nay	Meredith Frailey	/ Yea
Janelle Fullbright	Nay	Don Garvin	Yea
Chuck Hoskin Jr.	Nay	Tina Glory Jord	an Nay
Curtis Snell	Yea	Chris Soap Ye	а
David Thornton	Nay	Cara Cowan Wa	itts Yea

The motion for approval of the nomination of Roger Johnson passed with a vote of nine (9) yeas and seven (7) nays.

Councilor Cowan Watts moved to approve items 2 through 9 in Toto. Councilor Fishinghawk inquired as to if all of these nominees are Cherokee. Councilor Garvin seconded the motion for approval. Mr. Brad Carson stated he doesn't know Mr. Agent or Ms. Grigsby. All others are Cherokee citizens with the exception of Mr. Adelson. Ms. Knight spoke on the behalf of Mr. Agent and announced he is a tribal citizen. Numerous committee members announced Ms. Grigsby is a Cherokee citizen. Councilor Bill John Baker inquired as to the compensation of the board members for CNB. Mr. Carson stated he believed it to be \$12,000. a year. Councilor Bill John Baker inquired if he could be hired as a consultant or through a contract instead of a board member. Mr. Carson stated he is a very successful individual therefore he is not in the contracting or consulting business. Councilor Bill John Baker requested division of item 8 as a separate vote. Councilor Garvin called for the question. Chair Frailey called for all in favor of items 2 through 7 and item 9 in Toto. Motion carried.

A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE NOMINATION OF DAN AGENT AS A BOARD MEMBER OF THE EDITORIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Councilor Cowan Watts moved for the approval. Councilor Garvin seconded the motion, Motion carried.

3. A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE NOMINATION OF DAVID BALLEW AS A BOARD MEMBER OF THE CHEROKEE NATION METALWORKS, LLC BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Councilor Cowan Watts moved for the approval. Councilor Garvin seconded the motion, Motion carried.

4. A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE NOMINATION OF ADOLPH
LECHTENBERGER AS A BOARD MEMBER OF THE CHEROKEE NATION
ENTERPRISES, LLC, BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Councilor Cowan Watts moved for the approval. Councilor Garvin seconded the motion, Motion carried.

A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE NOMINATION OF JACKIE BOB MARTIN AS A BOARD MEMBER OF THE CHEROKEE NATION INDUSTRIES, LLC, BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Councilor Cowan Watts moved for the approval. Councilor Garvin seconded the motion, Motion carried.

A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE NOMINATION OF LIZ GRIGSBY AS A BOARD MEMBER OF THE CHEROKEE NATION INDUSTRIES, LLC, BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Councilor Cowan Watts moved for the approval. Councilor Garvin seconded the motion, Motion carried.

A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE NOMINATION OF LLOYD ARMSTRONG AS A BOARD MEMBER OF CHEROKEE NATION BUSINESSES, LLC, BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Councilor Cowan Watts moved for the approval. Councilor Garvin seconded the motion. Motion carried.

A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE NOMINATION OF THOMAS ADELSON AS A BOARD MEMBER OF CHEROKEE NATION BUSINESSES, LLC, BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chair Frailey called for roll call. Mr. Carson requested time to say a few words. He stated a vast majority of the entity board members are Cherokee as they should be however he believes very passionately in this particular nomination. He stated what they lack in the board are people who are experienced in investing in new businesses and starting companies from scratch. He stated Mr. Adelson has this expertise. Councilor Cowan Watts expressed approval for this nomination stating we do need this expertise on the board at this time for CNB. Councilor Glory Jordan stated she can not support anyone who is non Cherokee being on a board. She stated she respects Mr. Carson and understands the need but out of two hundred and some thousand tribal citizens there is someone who is qualified for this position. She agreed this individual may be more appropriate as a consultant. Mr. Carson stated they have had non tribal members on the boards in the past. He stated it is the mission for every position to be held by Cherokees from secretaries to CEO's During the transition there is a growth period. Mr. Adelson is a leading venture capitalist which is a skill that is in short supply.

This matter was Approved and Forwarded to Council

5.

6.

7.

8.

Yea: 10 - Don Garvin; Meredith Frailey; Cara Cowan Watts; Buel Anglen; Jack D. Baker; Janelle Fullbright; Harley Buzzard; Curtis Snell; Chris Soap and Bradley Cobb

Nay: 6 - Bill John Baker; S. Joe Crittenden; David Thornton Sr.; Tina Glory Jordan; Jodie Fishinghawk and Chuck Hoskin

A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE NOMINATION OF ADOLPH LECHTENBERGER AS A BOARD MEMBER OF THE CHEROKEE NATION BUSINESSES, LLC, BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Councilor Cowan Watts moved for the approval. Councilor Garvin seconded the motion, Motion carried.

A LEGISLATIVE ACT AMENDING TITLE 68 CHAPTER 4 OF THE CHEROKEE NATION CODE ANNOTATED - TOBACCO TAX; ADDING DEFINITIONS, AND ALLOWING FOR REPEAL OF SECTIONS OF THE TOBACCO TAX COMPACT ACT

10. (First item following approval of minutes)

AN ACT AMENDING LA 23-04 RELATING TO CHEROKEE NATION SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY AND DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE WAIVER FOR BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Councilor Bill John Baker stated some time in the past the Council approved for the chief to be able to sign off on daily mundane operations without coming before the Council for a waiver. He stated it seems it has extended to the landfill and other items. Mr. Hembree stated this limits the waiver amount given to the Chief of \$500,000. Mr. Carson voiced concern for the proposal. Companies that require bonding also require a waiver of sovereign immunity. Mr. Hembree stated we need to be cognizant of the constitution which states any waiver of sovereign immunity requires a resolution or enactment of the Tribal Council. He voiced concern that at this time there isn't a monetary limit to the chief's ability to waive. He stated he doesn't know how it could become more lax. He stated the current legislation allows for a waiver of millions of dollars without the consent of the Council. Councilor Bill John Baker stated until the current legislation was passed the Chief always had to come before this body for a waiver which always kept the Council aware of what was going on. Ms. Knight stated it seems the intention of the Act is not to hold up routine contracting. She announced there are many contracts at the Nation that are routine that would be caught up in this dollar limit. For example the phone contract and the Microsoft contract are more than a half of a million. Councilor Bill John Baker called for the question.

A motion was made by Councilor Bill John Baker and seconded by Councilor Cara Cowan Watts, that this matter be Approved and Forwarded to Council. The motion carried by the following vote:

Yea: 8 - Bill John Baker; S. Joe Crittenden; David Thornton Sr.; Tina Glory Jordan; Jodie Fishinghawk; Harley Buzzard; Curtis Snell and Chuck Hoskin

Nay: 7 - Don Garvin; Meredith Frailey; Cara Cowan Watts; Buel Anglen; Jack D. Baker; Janelle Fullbright and Chris Soap

Not In Room: 1 - Bradley Cobb

A RESOLUTION APPROVING ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION FOR THE CHEROKEE NATION COMMUNITY CORPORATION

12.

9.

10.

11.

Councilor Jack Baker announced this item is to be withdrawn and placed on the Community Service agenda for February.

13. PRESENTATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE ELECTED OFFICIALS COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

13. (Second item following approval of minutes)

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Chair Frailey announced the chili has arrived.

ADJOURNMENT

Councilor Cowan Watts moved for adjournment. Councilor Thornton seconded the motion at 12:38 p.m. Motion carried.

STAFF PRESENT:

Paula RagsdaleGregg SimmonsMelanie KnightDiane HammonsJamie HummingbirdDan AgentDeputy Joe GraysonGinger BrownDoug Evans

VISITORS PRESENT:

Joe BrooksRaymond VannBrad CarsonTodd HembreeJackie Bob MartinMike MillerJoe LaneRoger JohnsonJennifer Barger JohnsonGina OlayaJohn A. KetcherTony Grantham

APPROVAL / DISTRIBUTION

Minutes submitted by: Shelli Brittain, Legal & Legislative Coordinator
Motion to approve minutes made by:
Minutes attested and concurred by:
Date: